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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFP SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	RFP#202402055 Consulting Services to Analyze the Impact of Distributed Generation Resources on Ratepayers

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Maine Public Utilities Commission

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	March 13, 2024

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	March 15, 2024

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	March 28, 2024 no later than 11:50 p.m., local time

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov


Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, p. 5
	On p. 5, the RFP calls for a “comprehensive and detailed analysis of distributed generation resources located or to be located within the state.” Subsequent sections (e.g., Part IIA, p. 6 and quoted section of Public Law 2023, Ch. 307) refer specifically to DG resources that participate in the tariff rate program. Is it correct that the scope of the analysis would be limited to resources participating in the tariff rate program?


	
	Answer

	
	The scope of the analysis is not necessarily limited to the NEB projects participating in the tariff rate program because some portion of the analysis will require review and understanding of the NEB projects that participate in the kilowatt hour program both as a comparison and because the two kinds of NEB projects cannot be considered in isolation with respect to impact on ratepayers. But the statute and RFP generally do focus on the tariff rate program and the expectation is that the report will reflect this focus.


	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, p. 7
	Task D specifies that awarded Bidders would be expected to “evaluate whether the tariff rate program has been implemented in a way that maximizes the value of the portfolio of the resources to ratepayers.” We are aware of the draft report by London Economics, International recently distributed in Docket 2023-00023. At a high level, this report evaluates and makes recommendations for the strategies for liquidating energy distribution companies take title to through via various long-term contracts and the tariff rate program. Given this, it is our understanding that awarded Bidders would be expected to focus primarily on the question of treating assets as load reducers vs. generators, as the London Economics report addresses specific energy liquidation strategy and/or renegotiating contracts. Is this correct?


	
	Answer

	
	The assumption in the last sentence of submitted question 2 is generally correct. The Commission would not expect the report to reflect the kind of analysis set forth in the draft report that was issued in docket number 2023-00023.


	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, pp. 7-8
	Given that the report is to be delivered directly to the Commission and that the RFP specifies that fixed price estimates “should only include the cost to conduct the analysis and produce the draft and final reports,” is it correct to assume that the core scope and fixed cost proposal should assume no external stakeholder process?


	
	Answer

	
	The Commission does not anticipate conducting a stakeholder process although it is likely the report would be provided for public comment. The RFP also makes clear that the resulting report may become part of a future adjudicatory proceeding and that the bidder’s price should not reflect any work that would be undertaken as part of such an adjudicatory proceeding. 


	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, p. 11
	The RFP calls for “detailed yet succinct responses.” Are there any page limits for specific sections of the proposal?



	
	Answer

	
	There are no specified page limits. 


	5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix D, p. 23
	Given that work under the contract may stretch over multiple calendar years, may bidders specify 2025 rates (or a % change from 2024 to 2025 hourly rates)?


	
	Answer

	
	The RFP seeks bids for work that will result in a final report due August 26, 2024. Bidders should provide pricing for a time period that would end in September 2024, which is the date the report is due to the Maine Legislature. 


	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, page 12
	Will the ME PUC accept a Certificate of Good Standing or a Certification of Compliance from the proposer’s state secretary and state department of revenue, respectively, in place of the financial viability requirements of three years of balance sheets and income statements? 



	
	Answer

	
	No.  Bidders must provide the following information for each of the past three tax years:  

a. Balance Sheets

b. Income (Profit/Loss) Statements
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